
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL

Date & Time - Wednesday, 26 September 2018 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel:

Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), G R Aley, J R Astill, M D Booth (Vice-Chairman), 
C J T H Brewis, G K Dark, P C Foyster, R Grocock, J L King, J D McLean, A M Newton, 
M D Seymour, A C Tennant, J Whitbourn and S Wray

Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may be appointed only 
from members who are not on the Cabinet.  Substitutions apply for individual 
meetings only. 

Quorum: 5

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   18 September 2018



A G E N D A

1 Apologies for absence. 

2 Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel held on 31 July 2018 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
3 - 10)

3 Declaration of Interests. - Where a Councillor has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must declare the interest to the 
meeting and leave the room without participating in any discussion or 
making a statement on the item, except where a councillor is permitted 
to remain as a result of a grant of dispensation.

4 Questions asked under Standing Order 6 

5 Tracking of Recommendations - To consider responses of the Cabinet 
to reports of the Panel.

6 Items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

7 Key Decision Plan - To note the current Key Decision Plan (Pages 
11 - 16)

8 S106 Agreements - Monitoring of Section 106 financial contributions - 
(report of the Executive Director Place enclosed).

(Pages 
17 - 30)

9 Transformation service reviews - The Panel to receive a presentation 
from the Executive Manager, People and Public Protection, updating on 
the outcomes and position following the service reviews across the 
organisation, in relation to the transformation programme.

10 Re-letting of Void Properties Task Group - The Panel will receive a 
presentation from the Executive Director Place on the current situation.

11 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme - To set out the Work 
Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel (report of the 
Executive Manager Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed).

(Pages 
31 - 38)

12 Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent - 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in the 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 31 July 2018 
at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

B Alcock (Chairman)
M D Booth (Vice-Chairman)

J R Astill
C J T H Brewis
P C Foyster
J L King

J D McLean
A M Newton
M D Seymour
A C Tennant

J Whitbourn
S Wray

 

In Attendance:  Executive Director – Commercialisation, the Place Manager, the 
Environmental Protection Team Leader, Senior Business Intelligence Officer, 
Business Intelligence Officer  and the Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors G R Aley, 
G K Dark and R Grocock 

Action By
1 MINUTES 

The Chairman wanted to discuss several matters within the 
minutes of the meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel held 
on 2 May 2018:

The Chairman asked if members thought the description of the 
duties of wardens given in the Crime and Disorder update was 
accurate to the reality.. The Chairman stated that he felt that the 
description outlined what should be happening and members 
agreed. 

The Chairman wanted the CCTV report, mentioned in the minutes 
of the previous meeting to be circulated to Parish Councils.

Members stated that they had learned that South Holland was the 
only District Council in Lincolnshire that wasn’t in the Lincolnshire 
Emergency Planning group. The Place Manager stated that whilst 
SHDC was no longer in the County Council service level 
agreement, it was still an active partner in the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum (LRF).

 AGREED:

a) That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Performance 

EH 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



- 2 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
31 July 2018

Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 24 
April 2018 were signed by the Chairman as a correct record;

b) That the minutes of the meeting of the Performance 
Monitoring Panel held on 2 May 2018 were signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record. 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6 

There were no questions asked under Standing Order 6. 

4 TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

There were no responses of the Cabinet to consider. 

5 ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL. 

There were no items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

6 KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 20 
July 2018.

AGREED:

That the Key Decision Plan issued on 20 July 2018 be noted. 

7 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT QUARTER 1 2018-19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance, which provided an update on Council 
performance for the period 1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018.

Quarter 1 saw performance improve slightly in comparison to 
Quarter 4.  Performance was rated as ‘fair’ with 12 indicators 
being green (60%), which indicated good performance.  There 
were 2 (10%) amber indicators, and 6 red indicators (30%), 
highlighting lower than expected performance.  There were 8 
indicators which were classified as data only – this meant that 
they were monitored without requiring a target.

In discussing the report, the following key points emerged:

Page 4



- 3 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
31 July 2018

Staff turnover was posted at 3.6%. Officers confirmed that exit 
data was being taken into account. Members asked if any 
information could be gathered from the exit information and 
provided to the Panel. Officers responded that only general data 
could be provided which could not be used to identify personnel. 

The Chairman was pleased to see areas where performance was 
good. However, he was still concerned with the level of sickness 
at 2.75 days per employee, and asked how many days this added 
up to per year. It was agreed that this should continue to be 
monitored.

Members asked, regarding Freedom of Information (FOI) 
requests, if there could be extended deadlines for complex 
requests. Officers responded that this was not possible as 
deadlines were set in law. The Chairman asked if anything was 
being gained from the FOI requests. He also asked if sufficient 
resources were being supplied to be able to allow for the increase 
in complex requests. Members asked what were the implications 
of not getting the approach to FOI requests right were and what 
the penalty would be. Officers answered that there was no 
financial penalty but that the ICO could build a case up on the 
Authority, but to avoid this it would be important to keep FOI 
customers updated if a delay occurred.

Regarding calls abandoned, the Chairman stated that the average 
would add up to 45 calls dropped a day. He felt that this was not 
in line with the positive outlook that the report provided and that 
45 dropped calls per day would result in a lot of irritated 
customers. Officers responded that there various reasons for this 
and that more information could be gathered and brought back to 
the Panel.

On the matter of staff turnover, members stated that they felt that 
a higher turnover was not necessarily negative because staff 
turnover offered the Authority an opportunity to consider 
vacancies and recruitment opportunities.

Raising Long term sickness, the Chairman asked if the quarter’s 
figure of amount of long term sickness was comparable with the 
figure for last year. Officers stated they  would get this information 
for future reports.
 
The Chairman said the lack of delivery of houses could have a 
significant impact on the Council’s finances. The Executive 
Director - Commercialisation responded that the performance was 
actually improving and that there was a difference between 

CG, RB 

CG, RB 

CG, RB 

CG, RB 

Page 5



- 4 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
31 July 2018

houses being delivered by the Council and by private developers.

Members asked if rent arrears was being included in Universal 
Credit, if it was possible to get statistics. Officers stated that they 
would review if this information could be brought to a future 
meeting. The Chairman agreed that it would be important to have 
access to such info.

AGREED:

That the report be noted.

(The Senior Business Intelligence Officer and the Business 
Intelligence Officer left the meeting following discussion of the 
above item) 

CG, RB 

8 ENFORCEMENT UPDATE 

Consideration was given to the report of the Place Manager, 
which provided members with an update on enforcement activity.

Enforcement activity at the authority was extensive, and included 
planning enforcement, contraventions of building regulations, 
littering, fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour, abandoned vehicles, 
evictions, possessions, prohibition orders, food safety, health and 
safety, licensing, noise nuisance and pollution.

All departments dealing with enforcement did so in line with the 
Enforcement Policy agreed at Cabinet on 29 May, ensuring they 
took enforcement action when proportionate and necessary to do 
so.

Members of the Performance Monitoring Panel and the Policy 
Development Panel had both requested information on 
enforcement across the authority.  Officers across all relevant 
council services had reviewed all enforcement information that the 
Council held.  A suite of performance indicators to compliment the 
new Corporate Enforcement Policy had been developed.

The report provided members with an update on enforcement 
activity across three levels – advice/warnings; formal notices; and 
prosecution.  It was intended that these updates would be 
provided on a six monthly basis.

In discussing the report, the following key points emerged:

Officers gave an overview of the work and role of the dog warden. 
The prime function was control of the animals, meaning; catching, 

Page 6



- 5 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
31 July 2018

kennelling, returns to owners and enforcement of fouling matters. 
The warden was authorised to spray stencils and put up signs in 
problem areas, and also to request the implementation of dog 
waste bins. It was stated that the warden was also responsible for 
liaising with the Police in respect of dangerous dogs and Hare 
Coursing dogs.

The Chairman asked what area of activity was covered by the dog 
warden, and where their authority stretched to in terms of dealing 
with dog fouling. It was stated that the areas the warden was 
responsible for was the majority of public open spaces, as 
detailed in the SHDC Dog (Fouling of Land)Order 1999. Officers 
also stated that the newly appointed community wardens could 
also assist in similar roles meaning that warden coverage would 
appear to be greater in the future.

The Chairman suggested that the wardens had not yet been 
particularly present in the south of the district. He worried that 
Parish Councils would be asked to take part of the burden but that 
this was unacceptable, and that they should be entitled to their 
fair share of use of the wardens.

Members stated that they were incredibly happy with the current 
dog warden who was demonstrably willing to go above and 
beyond the call of duty to ensure the highest possible level of 
service. They felt that the community wardens should be moving 
around the district and consulting with parish councils in order to 
generate contacts.

Members felt that the community wardens should be introduced to 
Councillors in order to familiarise them with each other.

Members asked if fixed penalty notices could be publicised in 
newspapers to highlight the work of the wardens.

Members asked how issues could be reported to wardens. 
Officers stated that this could be done through the ‘report this’ 
button on the website. Members followed up, by asking if there 
was a financial benefit to Fixed Penalty Notices. Officers stated 
this was the case, but that the money would need to go back into 
the service.

Members asked if the numbers and therefore costs of flytips had 
increased due to outlying towns having their ‘Saturday Morning 
Collection Service’ stopped last year. Officers confirmed that 
comparison data would be provided on the numbers of flytips and 
cost associated with clearance over the last 3 years.

ES 

Page 7



- 6 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
31 July 2018

The Chairman had noticed the successful prosecutions, he asked 
if the fines issued had been collected. Officers stated that they 
would look into this. Members asked if the costs of prosecution 
had been asked for and was available. It was responded that this 
info was collected as part of the process

The Chairman asked how it was ensured that all fines, court costs 
and so forth were collected in line with the enforcement policy. 
Officers confirmed they would clarify the payment and collection 
process.

AGREED:

a) That the content of the report be noted; and

b) That a further update report be provided to the Panel in six 
months time. 

ES 

EH, ES 

EH, ES, 
CM 

9 SOUTH HOLLAND CENTRE CATERING LEASE AND 
SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place, which provided an update on the future catering options at 
the South Holland Centre.

In February 2018, a new catering lease was entered into for the 
South Holland Centre café and bar.  The lease was signed under 
the same terms and conditions as previous South Holland Centre 
catering leases.  The service level and lease term were until 
December 2019, with a break clause allowing either party to 
terminate the leave on giving not less than three months’ notice.

Since February 2018, the Council had received positive feedback 
regarding the catering supplier, and the supplier had recently 
been awarded a ‘5 star’ food hygiene rating.

AGREED:

a) That the contents of the report be noted; and

b) That a further update be provided to the Performance 
Monitoring Panel on 13 November 2018. ES 

10 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Work Programme consisted 

Page 8



- 7 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
31 July 2018

of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the 
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration, and the second setting out the Task Groups that 
had been identified by the Panel.

Members stated that they did not mind longer meetings, but that 
they wanted to see  relevant items brought to the panel so that 
they could be discussed as soon as possible.

Members also asked about the Internal Audit report, the 
Executive Director – Commercialisation responded that this had 
been discussed at Governance & Audit (G&A). 

Members stated that with audit documents the language was not 
always clear and there were differences between CPBS (write in 
full please) and SHDC audits which leads to some confusion 
amongst the press and public. The Executive Director - 
Commercialisation stated that work was already underway as a 
result of the meeting of G&A which had taken place in the week 
previous to this meeting.

Vacancy on Public Toilet Task Group – invite to be circulated.

AGREED:

That the Work Programme report provided by the Executive 
Manager Governance be noted. 

CM 

11 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were no urgent items. 

(The meeting ended at 7.52 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

KEY DECISION PLAN Issued – 18 September 
2018

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to: 

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.  

Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

2

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

New sewerage 
maintenance 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new sewerage maintenance 
contract for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Sep 
2018

Acquisition 
opportunity to 
expand the 
Housing 
Revenue 
Account

To set out details of a commercial 
opportunity relating to the potential for 
the council to acquire 15 units of 
affordable rented housing and 8 units 
of shared ownership over four 
development sites within the district.
To set out the business case 
associated with this commercial 
opportunity and to set out details of an 
officer recommendation in relation to it.

Acquisition 
opportunity to 
expand the 
Housing 
Revenue 
Account

Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Delivery and 
Strategic Oversight Not 
before 5th Oct 2018

P
age 12



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

3

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Building 
Materials 
Contract

To award a contract. Portfolio Holder for 
Housing. 

Meetings and discussions. 

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Oct 
2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Electrical 
Materials Supply 
Contract (EMSC) 
2017 - 2021

To award the EMSC to the successful 
supplier from the outcome of the 
procurement process Meetings and discussions

Officer Decisions Before 
30 Oct 2018

P
age 13



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

4

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Corporate 
Delivery and 
Strategic 
Oversight

A report 
concerning a 
proposed HRA 
development at 
Small Drove, 
Weston

To consider a business case in relation 
to the development of 34 affordable 
homes at Small Drove, Weston.

A report 
concerning a 
proposed HRA 
development at 
Small Drove, 
Weston

Cabinet 20 Nov 2018

South Holland District 
Council 28 Nov 2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Car Parking 
Recommendatio
ns

To review the recommendations for car 
parking provision in SHDC owned car 
parks prior to statutory consultation

Car Parking 
Recommendatio
ns

Cabinet 20 Nov 2018

P
age 14



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

5

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Lincolnshire 
Waste 
Partnership - 
Joint Municipal 
Waste 
Management 
Strategy

To consider the adoption of the Joint 
Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy

Lincolnshire 
Waste 
Partnership - 
Joint Municipal 
Waste 
Management 
Strategy

Cabinet 12 Feb 2019

*Cabinet Membership
The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader)
Councillor T Carter (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C Johnson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

P
age 15



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

6

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

P
age 16

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


1

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Rob Walker, Executive Director - Place
 

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 26 September 2018 

Author: Phil Norman, Planning and Building Control Manager
Jacqui Berridge, Legal Services Officer
Paul Jackson, Executive Programme Manager – Infrastructure and Housing 
Delivery

Subject S106 Agreements

Purpose: Monitoring of section 106 financial contributions  

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the contents of the report are noted.

 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 On 2 May 2018 the Panel considered a report from the Development Manager which 
explained the background and policy basis surrounding the process of securing section 106 
agreements.  This report additionally responded to the December 2017 Assurance Review 
which, following audit, has made two key recommendations.  For ease of reference, these 
recommendations were that the Council:

(a) Undertook a comprehensive review of all S106 agreements; and

(b) Assigned responsible officers to ensure that trigger points were monitored and 
obligations received when due.

The aim of introducing this rigour to the process was to ensure that the Council enforced 
S106 planning obligations and mitigated the potential risk of either financial loss or 
reputational damage.  Key to this process was the need to assign responsible officers for 
monitoring the trigger points associated with individual agreements in order to ensure that 
the Council received obligations when due.  There was an equal need to ensure that any 
monies received were thereafter spent both in accordance with the terms of the agreement 
and within the required timescales.

1.2 At that meeting the Panel agreed that a further report be submitted providing information on 
the following issues:

 An overview of existing S106 agreements 
 An explanation of the main trigger points
 The identification of an officer responsible for monitoring the terms of the agreements, 

particularly the commencement of works
 The mechanism for ensuring that monies associated with s106 agreements are 

secured in accordance with the terms of the agreement 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



2

 The identification of an officer responsible for ensuring that financial contributions are 
spent accordingly and within prescribed timescales 

 The approach taken to ensuring members are regularly updated on financial matters 
associated with s106 agreements.

1.3 This report deals with all existing S106 agreements requiring the provision of a financial 
contribution.  Agreements relating to non-financial matters will be considered in a 
subsequent report.  It should be noted that the processes associated with each type of 
agreement are broadly similar.  Indeed, many agreements cover both financial and non-
financial matters.

2       THE ISSUES 

An overview of existing S106 agreements 

2.1 Officers have reviewed all existing S106 agreements registered with the Council.  There are 
currently 58 individual S106 agreements registered in the Council’s monitoring sheet which 
contain financial obligations.  Not all of these obligations relate to contributions payable to 
the District Council.  Some  relate to contributions payable to the Lincolnshire County 
Council whilst others relate to contributions eventually payable to third parties, for example 
parish councils or healthcare providers.  Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended) requires that any financial contributions be paid to the local planning 
authority.  So, under S106, all financial contributions must be paid either to the District 
Council or to the County Council.  These authorities are then responsible for ensuring that 
any third party money is spent appropriately.

2.2 The 58 individual S106 agreements currently registered with the Council only become 
enforceable when development commences on site and/or when a particular stage of 
development is reached.  In addition, each agreement may contain a number of individual 
financial requirements and each of these requirements will only become deliverable when a 
relevant trigger point is reached.  Typically, trigger points revolve around stages of 
development.  Some obligations are required when development commences.  Others 
apply at various stages during construction and still others relate to completion and 
occupation.  In this sense it is important to understand that the existing 58 S106 
agreements contain a much larger number of trigger points, each of which requires 
monitoring.  Currently, development has commenced across a range of sites triggering 42 
individual financial obligations.  Of these, 17 relate to affordable housing contributions and 
11 to public open space provision.  The remaining 14 relate to matters including economic 
development, environmental improvements, transport, education and healthcare.  In each 
instance, the financial obligation associated with the development itself is usually 
recoverable in stages.  As each agreement is individual, and as any associated financial 
payments are only payable on commencement/or in stages and are additionally normally 
index linked, we cannot predict final sums payable until the index linked sum is triggered.  It 
is, however, accurate to say that all agreements are monitored against their trigger points 
and any associated financial obligations are sought when due.  In addition, officers can 
provide the detail associated with each individual S106 agreement as well as information 
relating to any associated financial obligations.  This will include information relating to 
when any monies are due to be received, what they should be spent on and by when.  It is 
also possible to monitor both the monies received and associated expenditure across a 
particular timeframe.  

2.3 Members should also note that, historically, financial obligations secured under the terms of 
S106 were reasonably rare.  This has changed with the introduction of affordable housing 

Page 18



3

requirements; most notably since the adoption of the 2006 Local Plan.  Evidence to 
legitimise education and healthcare contributions has also been increasingly forthcoming in 
recent years.  Modern S106 agreements deal mainly with 3 types of financial contributions; 
affordable housing, education and healthcare. Additionally, and as set out in the earlier 
Panel report, there are also some major application sites that require other types of 
financial contributions.  These include, but are not limited to;

 Power stations at Sutton Bridge and Spalding -  contributions to cover 
environmental issues 

 Major housing developments e.g. Holland Park, Spalding and Manor Farm, 
Holbeach – contributions to secure infrastructure such as roads and community 
centres, provision of bus services, etc. 

An explanation of the main trigger points

2.4 The trigger points for financial payments associated with any individual development are 
negotiated with the developer at the time the application is submitted and subsequently 
determined.  Individual trigger points will take account of various issues such as the number 
of properties being built and the financial viability of a payment being made at a particular 
point in the development.  The local planning authority has to be content that the trigger 
point is not so late in the development that there is a possibility of the contribution not being 
paid.  This is possible, for example, where a development company dissolves at the end of 
a development.

2.5 For residential developments, trigger points usually relate to commencement of 
development; and/or the number of dwellings completed; and/or the number of dwellings 
occupied.  For example, a contribution may be payable prior to occupation of 50% of the 
dwellings.  

2.6 On larger developments developers are often required by the S106 agreement to keep the 
local planning authority updated regarding the number of dwellings completed and/or 
occupied.  In practice this does not happen routinely – particularly so in the case of larger 
schemes or developments that take place over a number of years.  It is possible for officers 
to monitor these statistics via building control (where the internal building control service 
has been used) and via the local land charges clerk (in terms of how many search 
applications have been received).  Officers within the planning service already monitor 
completions in order to complete data returns but there is a recognised need to tighten up 
on this aspect of monitoring to ensure that this information is correlated with the trigger 
points associated with live S106 agreements.  An officer has therefore been identified 
within the planning service who will act as the S106 monitoring officer for this and other 
monitoring purposes.   In this sense, it needs to be noted that there has historically been no 
single officer within the wider Council specifically appointed as the monitoring officer for 
S106 agreements.  Individual officers within the planning service have previously been 
responsible for monitoring individual sites but, given the need for a wider corporate 
overview involving both finance and legal teams, the authority now needs to embed a 
process which takes account of both the wider picture and staff turnover.

2.7 For non-residential developments the trigger points will usually relate to the 
commencement of the development, and/or a specified period after the commencement of 
development (e.g. 18 months following commencement of development), and/or the date 
that the development starts operating.

Page 19



4

The identification of an officer responsible for monitoring the terms of the 
agreement, particularly the commencement of works

2.8 Following the Assurance Review of S106 agreements it has become clear that the existing 
system for monitoring both the receipt and subsequent spending of financial contributions 
associated with individual agreements needed greater co-ordination across the 
organisation.    The need for greater co-ordination has arisen mainly as a consequence of 
changes in service provision, organisational restructure and staff turnover.

2.9 Officers have now undertaken a review of post-agreement S106 processes.  This review 
has been undertaken by officers spanning the planning, legal and finance departments.  It 
is clear that a more comprehensive monitoring system, predicated on process mapping, 
could be adopted.  This system will need to embed close working relationships across the 
wider council and is ready to be introduced.  In essence, the process will be administered 
as follows;

 The Finance Team, and SHDC’s legal and planning teams jointly maintain a 
spreadsheet of live S106 agreements containing a requirement for financial 
contributions.

 This spreadsheet will be updated by the legal team each time a new section 106 
agreement containing a financial obligation is completed. 

 The S106 monitoring officer will maintain and monitor the S106 spreadsheet.  It will 
be their responsibility to maintain contact with developers, building control and the 
council’s enforcement officer to assess when developments have commenced and 
establish when trigger points are being reached so that payment of the associated 
financial contribution can be sought.  

 The S106 monitoring officer will chase payment when due in direct liaison with both 
legal and finance officers.

 Once a contribution has been received the S106 monitoring officer notifies the 
Responsible Officer that the monies have been received.  This will include a 
reminder of the reasons for which the contribution has been received (i.e. what the 
money is for and what it can be spent on) together with a clear instruction of the 
timescale within which the monies need to be spent.

 Individual Responsible Officers within the council have been identified as being 
responsible for spending each type of financial contribution.  It will be their 
responsibility to ensure that all financial contributions are spent both within time and 
in accordance with the terms on which they were secured. The role of the 
Responsible Officer is explained in more detail below.

2.10 The above process is set out illustratively in the flowchart attached at Appendix 1.  This 
flowchart is separated into two parts; the first part deals with collecting the money whilst the 
second deals with spending the money.  Collecting the money is mainly down to the S106 
monitoring officer, albeit legal and finance may become involved if receipt of the payment 
needs to be enforced.  Responsibility for spending the money for the purposes intended 
and within the appropriate timeframe is entirely down to the Responsible Officers.  

2.11 The master S106 monitoring spreadsheet compiled by officers contains a tab marked 
“Responsible Officer Role”. This sets out clearly that the Responsible Officer is required to:

 Spend the money within time
 Spend the money in accordance with the terms of the agreement

Page 20



5

 Ensure that all decisions about how the money is spent, and details of any money 
committed, are recorded on the monitoring spreadsheet.

2.12 It also clarifies that each Responsible Officer retains full responsibility for spending the 
monies allocated to them, even if they choose to delegate the matter to an officer within 
their team.  Internal meetings will be scheduled quarterly to ensure timescales are 
monitored.  These meetings will include the S106 officer and officers from planning, legal 
and finance as required.

The mechanism for ensuring that monies associated with s106 agreements are 
secured in accordance with the terms of the agreement 

2.13 As set out above, the S106 monitoring officer will assume responsibility for regularly 
monitoring the master spreadsheet.  This role will require the S106 monitoring officer to 
liaise directly with developers, the building control service and the Council’s Enforcement 
Officer in order to maintain oversight of the commencement of development and current 
numbers of dwellings occupied/completed as required.  It will also require the S106 
monitoring officer to chase and secure payments as appropriate.  This detail is illustrated in 
the first part of the flowchart attached at Appendix 1 “collecting the money”. 

2.14 It needs to be noted that financial contributions associated with S106 agreements are 
usually index linked and may also be subject to additional interest if payment is late.  Any 
additional payments required by index linking and interest will be determined by the S106 
monitoring officer in association with finance officers and sought from the developer at the 
time that the payment is due.  Index linked income and any interest due on the payment will 
be marked separately in the spreadsheet for the purposes of clarity.

 The identification of an officer responsible for ensuring that financial contributions 
are spent accordingly and within prescribed timescales 

2.15 A Responsible Officer is assigned to each type of financial contribution as follows: 

 Affordable Housing - Shared Executive Manager Growth & Regeneration 
 Economic Development – Shared Executive Manager Growth & Regeneration
 Apprenticeships/Education – Shared Executive Manager People & Public 

Protection 
 Environmental Improvements – Shared Executive Manager People & Public 

Protection 
 Transport – Shared Executive Manager Growth & Regeneration 
 Open Space and Community - Place Manager 
 Education LCC – S106 monitoring officer in association with legal 
 Healthcare – S106 monitoring officer in association with legal
 Other – S106 monitoring officer (e.g. payments to cover the development control 

function of the Council)  

2.16 All Responsible Officers will be familiar with the master monitoring spreadsheet and be 
made individually aware of their responsibilities in order to ensure that each financial 
contribution is spent for the purposes intended and within the specified timeframe. The 
monitoring spreadsheet is itself divided into tabs, these identifying the different types of 
contributions; i.e. there are separate tabs for affordable housing, economic development, 
apprenticeships/education, environmental improvements, transport, open space and 
community, education LCC, healthcare, and other.  This means that each Responsible 

Page 21



6

Officer has specific tabs dedicated in order to ensure that each type of financial contribution 
is individually monitored.

2.17 The columns in the monitoring spreadsheet contain details of how each contribution must 
be spent and the timescale within which it must be spent.  A copy of the site-specific S106 
agreement has also been linked into the spreadsheet so that Responsible Officers can see 
the full terms of the agreement for each contribution.

2.18 An additional tab on the spreadsheet entitled “Responsible Officer Role” clearly sets out the 
role of the Responsible Officer.  

2.19 There is additionally a tab entitled “Governance”.  This is necessary because even though 
authority has been given for a section 106 agreement to be entered into to enable the 
Council to receive money, it is usually necessary to seek further formal approval to spend 
the money. This applies unless the agreement is so tightly written that there is no discretion 
at all in how to spend the money, or the money is a commuted sum e.g. for an open space.  
The “Governance” tab sets out what Responsible Officers need to do in order to spend 
S106 money.  Each individual tab also contains a reminder at the top which says: 
“Responsible Officers - before spending any money see the “governance” tab”. 

2.20 All Responsible Officers must notify the finance service when:
 
 any formal decision has been made to spend a contribution or part of a 

contribution
 any money has been committed.  For the purposes of the spreadsheet 

“committed” means that a contract has been entered into unless the specific 
agreement states otherwise 

2.21 Finally, there is a notification form available to Responsible Officers (attached as Appendix 
2).  Completion of this form will enable finance officers to update the monitoring schedule 
and will additionally allow officers to know exactly how much money has been approved for 
spending, how much money has been committed, and how much money remains.

The approach taken to ensuring members are regularly updated on financial matters 
associated with s106 agreements 

2.22 In order to ensure that members are regularly updated on progress relating to financial 
contributions associated with outstanding S106 agreement held by the council, it is your 
officers’ view that regular reports are submitted to the Strategic Growth Board.  

Other issues 

2.23 In order to ensure that the processes described above are robust a number of safeguards 
have been incorporated into the monitoring system as follows:

 Quarterly meetings will be held between legal, finance and the S106 monitoring 
officer.  The purpose of these meetings will be to monitor progress, identify any 
matters outstanding, to consider actions (including legal actions) in default; and to 
ensure that the Responsible Officers are on track with spending in line with 
timescales.  

Page 22



7

 The Council’s Enforcement officer will monitor any outstanding triggers causing 
concern and will be instructed to take actions as required to ensure compliance with 
the terms of the relevant S106 following on from the quarterly meetings 

 Editing rights on the master monitoring sheet will rest with legal, finance and the 
S106 monitoring officer.  All updates from the Responsible Officers will be input into 
the system by the S106 monitoring officer.

 The S106 monitoring officer will also be responsible for monitoring the timeframes 
associated with spending financial contributions and will send out regular reminders 
to the Responsible Officers. 

 A summary version of the master spreadsheet will be produced by the S106 
monitoring officer at six monthly intervals.  This will contain details of all S106 
financial contributions received, any monies spent, all monies due within the next six 
months and all monies remaining with the authority.  This information will be made 
available to the internal officer Finance Board in order to ensure that any 
implications on either underspend or the wider budget are raised at an early stage.

2.24 The safeguards highlighted above are, for the purposes of clarity, highlighted in Appendix 1 
(attached).

3      ASSURANCE REVIEW DECEMBER 2017 

3.1 Officers consider it prudent to advise the Panel on how the above process feeds into the 
earlier Assurance Review in terms of the issues this review highlighted relating to ~S106 
financial obligations.  In summary, the Review identified the following issues: 

(a) Urgent recommendation – “A comprehensive review of all s106 agreements is to 
be completed, the review is to ensure that the records include all trigger points, both 
financial (and other obligations), along with responsible officers. This will reduce the risk 
that the Council overlooks/does not enforce all its s106 planning obligations and any 
financial loss and reputational damage to the Council.”

Update - The monitoring spreadsheet has been comprehensively reviewed by officers.  
The master spreadsheet incorporates details of all trigger points.  From this point forward 
the S106 monitoring officer will monitor the collection of all payments.  Responsible Officers 
for spending each type of financial contribution have now been identified and will be directly 
notified. 

(b) Urgent recommendation – “The Council is to assign responsible officers for 
monitoring financial (and non-financial) obligations contained in S106 agreements, to 
monitor when trigger points are reached to ensure the Council receives the obligations.  A 
summary to be submitted to the joint Finance Board to provide oversight that obligations 
are monitored and received.  This will help to reduce the risks of the Council missing out on 
the vital benefits from the S106 agreement and developers reclaiming commuted sums not 
been spent in accordance with the required timescales.”

Update – As above.  A report will be submitted to the internal officer Finance Board as 
soon as the spreadsheet has been updated.  From that point forwards update reports will 
be submitted to the Finance Board at six (6) monthly intervals.

(c) Important recommendation – “A local procedure is to be devised detailing how the 
Council is to progress S106 agreements and subsequent monitoring of the obligations 

Page 23



8

contained therein, this is to reduce the risk of having inconsistent practices being developed 
with key obligations being overlooked.”

Update– The legal officer is currently preparing an overall standard S106 draft agreement 
to deal with all standard s106 matters, this including financial and non-financial obligations.  
This will be used as a general template, but members need to recognise that developers 
may wish to negotiate amendments to standard template clauses to take into account local 
conditions and viability issues.  From this point forwards S106 Monitoring will be 
comprehensively collated via the S106 monitoring officer in accordance with the provisions 
of flowchart attached at Appendix 1.

(d) Important recommendation – “A formal process is to be introduced to ensure 
Finance is informed of all s106 monies received and any payment made, with monitoring 
records updated accordingly.  This will reduce the risk of incorrect coding of s106 monies 
on the ledger and ensuring that the monies are used for the purpose intended.”

Update – As above and set out within Appendix 1.

(e) Needs attention – “written evidence of having reviewed and agreed the content of s106 
agreements by interested departments and other relevant authorities be obtained and 
retained on file to reduce the risk of the Council losing out on vital benefits where approval 
from relevant departments or other relevant authorities is not received before the 
agreement is finalised.”

Update – A planning obligation, including an obligation requiring payment of a financial 
contribution, may only constitute a reason for granting planning permission for the 
development if the obligation is (a) necessary to make the development acceptable in 
planning terms; (b) directly related to the development; and (c) fairly and reasonably related 
in scale and kind to the development.  Internal departments are not normally included within 
the negotiation process as it is considered that this is a matter for the planning officer and 
this recommendation is being discussed with audit.  External organisations such as 
Lincolnshire County Council and health care providers submit their requirements in 
response to consultation, backed up by evidence of need. 

(f) Needs attention – “finance is to review the current status of all s106 monies and to 
ensure updates are provided to and reviewed at subsequent meetings of the Finance Board 
as a standard agenda item.  Management scrutiny and oversight will ensure that s106 
monies are correctly accounted for and are spent as per their conditions.” 

Update– the master S106 monitoring sheet has been comprehensively reviewed and 
updated.  From this point forwards the responsibility for updating the ‘live’ monitoring sheet 
will rest with the councils S106 monitoring officer.  Six monthly updates will be provided to 
the internal officer Finance Board as set out above.

4.0 OPTIONS

4.1 Option (A) - Do Nothing

4.2 The recommendation is to note the contents of this report.

4.3 The ‘Do Nothing’ option is not recommended.

4.4 Option (B) – Note and endorse the contents of the report and actions to date. 

Page 24



9

5.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

5.1 The recommendations set out above are self-explanatory.  

6.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

6.1 Correct and timely receipt and spending of financial contributions secured by S106 
agreements.  Protection of the council’s financial position and maintenance of its 
reputation.

7.0 IMPLICATIONS

7.1 In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; 
Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more 
of these headings, these are identified below.

7.2 Constitutional & Legal

7.2.1 Enforcement of s106 agreements is a matter for the District Council (in relation to 
covenants given by a developer to the District Council) and the County Council (in relation 
to covenants given by a developer to the County Council) as local planning authorities.  It is 
therefore incumbent upon the District Council to ensure payment of all financial 
contributions payable to the District Council at the appropriate time to ensure that all issues 
arising out of the associated development are delivered.

7.3 Corporate Priorities

7.3.1 One of the Council’s corporate priorities is to enable the effective planning and delivery of 
housing solutions to meet local needs by providing access to a range of housing options, 
influencing standards and being a landlord of choice. This includes the provision of 
affordable housing and it is important that all affordable housing contributions are collected 
and spent accordingly.  This report recommends a course of action that meshes with the 
Councils key priorities of encouraging the local economy to be vibrant with continued 
growth and in having pride in South Holland by supporting the district and residents to 
develop and thrive.

7.4 Financial

7.4.1 It is important that financial controls are in place to ensure that all S106 contributions are 
spent appropriately with a view to meeting the planning needs of the area in which each 
development is situated. It is considered that the procedures detailed in Appendix 1 
together with the monitoring spreadsheet provide effective financial controls.

7.5 Reputation

7.5.1 The Assurance Review has highlighted the need to avoid reputational damage to the 
Council by ensuring that all contributions are collected and spent appropriately.  It is 
considered that the procedure detailed in Appendix 1 together with the monitoring 
spreadsheet will ensure that the council’s reputation continues to be protected.

Page 25



10

7.6 Risk Management

7.6.1 The management of risk is inherent in procedures proposed to be introduced and set out in 
the body of this report. 

7.7 Staffing

7.7.1 The current proposals rely upon minor internal changes within the planning service to 
incorporate the role of the S106 Monitoring Officer within the team.

8.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

8.1 All wards. 

9.0 ACRONYMS

9.1 S106 – Agreement under the terms of Section 106 to the Town and Country Planning Act 
(as amended)

Background papers:- Assurance Review of s106 agreements dated December 2017 

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Phil Norman, Planning and Building Control Manager,

Jacqui Berridge, Legal Services Officer,
Paul Jackson, Executive Programme Manager – Infrastructure and 
Housing Delivery

Telephone Number 01775 761161 

Email: pnorman@sholland.gov.uk, jacqui.berridge@breckland-
sholland.gov.uk, paul.jackson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk
paul.jackson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: N 
Exempt Decision: N 
This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix 1 Flowchart 
Appendix 2 Responsible Officer Notification to Compass Point 

Page 26



11
Page 27



12

Appendix 1 - Section 106 Agreements – monitoring of financial obligations

 Collecting the money  
        

 

Safeguards

 Quarterly meetings between Legal, Compass Point and s106 Monitoring Officer to consider 
any outstanding issues 

 Annual report to November / December meeting of PMP and six monthly report to the 
internal Finance Board 

 Enforcement Officer monitors outstanding triggers as required following quarterly meetings  

Legal  

 Inputs details into all purple columns on monitoring spreadsheet.
 notifies, and scans copy agreement to, Compass Point, & advises which tabs have been updated  
 notifies s106 Monitoring Officer

Section 106 agreement is completed by Legal 

Once money has been received s106 Monitoring Officer notifies 

 Compass Point, who updates monitoring spreadsheet, including date of receipt and 
name of payer and any indexation and interest paid, and codes the income 

 Responsible Officer, and notifies Responsible Officer of when the money must be 
spent, and that the Responsible Officer must read the “Governance” and 
“Responsible Officer Responsibilities” tabs on monitoring spreadsheet.  

S106 Monitoring Officer notifies Responsible 
Officer that agreement has been completed and 

will be linked to monitoring sheet, and that 
Responsible Officer will be notified when money 

received  

S106 MO monitors all development commencement dates.

S106 MO chases payment at appropriate time, including any indexation and interest due, as calculated in 
association with Compass Point.  

Commencement of development - liaise with building control and/or Enforcement Officer and/or 
developer to secure date of commencement

Occupation of dwellings - the local land charges clerk can notify the s106 MO when a relevant number 
of searches have been received.  Also liaise with developer 

Contribution, plus indexation and any interest payable, can be paid by cheque or BACS 

Compass Point uploads copy s106 
agreement to Shine page and links it to all 
entries for that agreement in the monitoring 

spreadsheet  

Page 28



13

Spending the money 

Safeguards 

 Editing rights on monitoring spreadsheet stay with Legal, Compass Point and s106 
Monitoring Officer to ensure proper governance and continuity 

 S106 Monitoring Officer monitors spending timeframes and sends reminder to Responsible 
Officers 

 Monitoring spreadsheet contains details of how to spend money (“Governance”) and what 
Responsible Officers’ responsibility is

 Quarterly meetings between Legal, Compass Point and s106 Monitoring Officer to consider 
any outstanding issues

 Annual report to November/December meeting of PMP and six monthly reports to the 
internal Finance Board 

Responsible Officers 

 Affordable Housing - Shared Executive Manager Growth & Regeneration
 Economic Development - Shared Executive Manager Growth & Regeneration
 Apprenticeships and Education - Shared Executive Manager People & Public 

Protection
 Environmental Improvements - Shared Executive Manager People & Public 

Protection 
 Transport - Shared Executive Manager Growth & Regeneration 
 Open Space - Place Manager 
 Education -    S106 Monitoring Officer in association with Legal to 

ensure money goes to LCC once they show proof of 
commitment

 Healthcare – S106 Monitoring Officer in association with Legal to 
ensure money goes to healthcare authority once they 
show proof of commitment

 Other - S106 monitoring officer (deals only with issues such 
as payments towards planning function) 

Responsible Officer takes full responsibility for

 Spending the money within time
 Spending the money in accordance with the terms of the agreement
 Ensuring that all decisions about how the money is spent, and details of any money 

committed, are notified to Compass Point for recording on monitoring spreadsheet. 

Responsible Officers must 

 submit reports to Cabinet or portfolio holder on proposed spending
 notify Compass Point of all decisions arising from those reports so that Compass 

Point can update monitoring spreadsheet
 ensure contracts are entered into on time
 notify Compass Point of all money committed by contract for updating spreadsheet 

 See “Governance” and “Lead Officers’ Responsibilities” tabs on monitoring spreadsheet  

Page 29



14

Appendix 2

SECTION 106 CONTRIBUTIONS
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER NOTIFICATION TO COMPASS 

POINT
This notification relates to the following tab in the monitoring sheet (delete as appropriate):

 Affordable housing 
 Economic development 
 Apprenticeships and education 
 Environmental improvements 
 Transport 
 Open space 

This notification relates to the following development: 

Planning application reference:  ………………………………………

Development site:  ………………………………………………………

Where a formal decision has been made complete the box below: 

The *Cabinet / portfolio holder for …………………………………… (*delete as appropriate) 
made a decision on ……………………………. (date) to spend the following, and the 5 day 
call-in period has expired:

Amount: ……………………………………………………………………………………………
To be spent on: ……………………………………………………………………………………

The Cabinet minute number is:  C ….                    OR 
The portfolio holder decision notice number is: …….

Where a contract has been entered into complete the box below:

Purpose of contract: ……………………………………………..

Amount of contract:  ……………………………………………..

Date of contract:  …………………………………………………

Signed: ……………………………………………

Name: …………………………………………….

Date: ……………………………………………..

Page 30



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

To: Performance Monitoring Panel –26 September 2018

Author: Christine Morgan – Democratic Services Officer

Subject: Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel

Recommendation:

That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion; 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 
inclusion on its Work Programme.

1.2 Issues

1.2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  This appendix will be updated as new 
items are identified.

1.2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
shows:

 The name of the task group
 What it wants to achieve
 Key dates
 Membership of the task group
 When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel

1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 
standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the 
opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the 
Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date.

Page 31

Agenda Item 11



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors 
with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items and 
proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of 
the decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Corporate Priorities

5.1.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, councillors consider the 
suitability of the subject, taking into account such considerations as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the topic 
links to the Council’s key aims and priorities. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 This report has no implications however, as individual items are progressed through the 
Work Programme, their impact on wards and communities will be assessed.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Christine Morgan
Telephone Number: 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Work Programme Calendar
Appendix B Task Group Work Programme 2018/19

Page 32



 APPENDIX A

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 
ITEMS

Date of Meeting Agenda items

26 September 
2018

 Re-letting of Void Properties Task Group – Update report on 
progress in actioning recommendations of the Task Group

 S106 monies report – to provide information on issues raised 
during last update on 2 May 2018.

 Update presentation on Transformation service reviews.
4 October 2018
Joint PMP/PDP

 Risk Policy
 Leisure update

1 November 
2018
Joint PMP/PDP

 Corporate Plan 2019-23
 ICT and Digital Strategy
 Customer Access Strategy

13 November 
2018

 Performance Overview Report Q2 – 2018-19
 Opportunity Peterborough
 Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety and 

how it is being delivered through the various tiers of Groups 
and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly formed 
Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six months 
by the Portfolio Holder for Community Development. Last 
discussed at 2/5/18 meeting where it was requested that 
information to this meeting be provided on – 1) Evidence of 
publicity around the LSP’s initiatives; and 2) Details of 
progress in the key initiatives.

 Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – 
update on progress of recommendations (last update received 
2 May 2018 – update to address issues raised at this meeting)

 Economic Development  - Update report (6 months from last 
update 2 May 2018)

 Information report on future commercialisation projects 
 Catering lease, South Holland Centre – To outline future 

catering contract options.
30 January 
2019

 Performance Overview Report Q3 – 2018-19
 Emergency Response – Information report to be provided 

once the Terms of Reference with regard to Emergency 
Planning have been clarified.

 Enforcement – update report on how the Authority is 
addressing the various types of enforcement, following the 
Authority-wide reorganisation. (last update 6/2/18 and 
31/7/18))

20 March 2019 
Future meetings 
2018/19 
municipal year, 
and items yet to 
be allocated.

 Commercialisation (2) – how effectively is the Authority 
managing commercial opportunities?  Second report, a 
general report around commercialisation.

 Health Inequality – Health Commissioning Group to be invited 
to a meeting to provide a presentation

 Cost of running the South Holland Centre 
 What areas of risk exist within Public Services for cost 

shunting, and how can this be avoided? 

Page 33



For consideration later in the year

 Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have 
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up 
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by 
Cabinet (date to be confirmed).

 Commercialisation – As potential projects arise, PMP to consider scrutiny

****************
To be considered annually:

The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group presented its Final Report to 
Council on 21 January 2015.  Its first recommendation was:

That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that the Task Group has 
considered the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the 
Council is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the Commission in order to 
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) invites  the Performance 
Monitoring Panel to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis 
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remains compliant with 
Charity Commission Guidance.

Membership of Task Group to be agreed and meet on an annual basis to 
consider the issue.

Meeting to be arranged in January 2019.

Page 34



APPENDIX B

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2018/2019

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Public Toilets Task Group To look at the locations, costs and 
refurbishment of all public toilets within the 
district that are the responsibility of the 
Authority, and to consider their actual usage.

Scope to be agreed at first meeting of the Task 
Group (To be confirmed).

6 February 
2018

23 April 2018 J R Astill
CJTH Brewis
T A Carter
GK Dark 
(Chairman)
PC Foyster

To be confirmed

Swimming Pool and 
Leisure Centre Contract 
Task Group

To review the Spalding swimming pool and 
leisure centre, specifically:
 To consider performance, in relation to the 

contract, by the Authority and the 
contractor, particularly with reference to 
building maintenance and cleanliness, 
promotion of the facilities and reinvestment 
in the facilities;

 To look at the Council’s performance in 
monitoring the leisure facilities; and

 To learn from the outcomes of this scrutiny, 
to inform future contracts and contract 
monitoring.

1 December 
2015

21 January 
2016

J R Astill
T A Carter
G K Dark 
(Chairman)
J L King
A M Newton

30 August 2016

To Cabinet 8 
November 2016

Response and 
update on 
progress PMP 
4/2/17, 16/5/17, 
7/11/17 and 
2/5/18.
Next update 
13/11/18.

P
age 35



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Performance of the re-
letting of voids Task 
Group

To review the Council’s performance of re-
letting void properties and to make 
recommendations to help improve

15 June 
2016

3 October 
2016

GR Aley 
(Chairman)
MD Booth
CJTH Brewis
TA Carter

16 May 2017
To Cabinet 25 
July 2017

Updates on 
progress - PMP 
7/11/17, next 
update 26/9/18.

Sir Halley Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group

Recommendation of the original Task Group to 
appoint a Task Group on an annual (single 
meeting) basis for the specific purpose of 
ensuring that the Council remained compliant 
with Charity Commission Guidance.

15 June 
2016

Date to be 
confirmed.

GR Aley
JR Astill
GK Dark
PC Foyster
AM Newton

Note: Meeting to 
be arranged in 
January 2019.

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group

Purpose of Review – To establish the current 
situation with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on the way 
forward.

Terms of Reference – To examine the 
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision.

Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from the 
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society 

6 November 
2012 

21 November 
2012 

B Alcock
M Howard
R M Rudkin
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman)

  
Membership 
to be 
considered 

Interim report to 
PMP 29 January 
2013 
Interim report to 
Cabinet 19 
February 2013.
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 26 March 
2013
Updates to PMP:

P
age 36



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

on the position regarding CCTV.  Performance 
information will be available on the new system 
in the future, once it becomes operational.  
The Task Group will remain in operation to 
scrutinise performance and will start to do 
this once the information becomes 
available.

following 
District 
Council 
Election 

8 April 2014, and 
six-monthly 
thereafter. 

Leisure Facilities Task 
Group

Joint Task Group 
incorporating members of 
the Performance 
Monitoring and Policy 
Development Panels. 

To make recommendations, regarding the 
present and future leisure     provision in South 
Holland.

1. By establishing what leisure provision the 
District Council presently provides, 
examining costs, resident satisfaction and 
competitiveness in order to identify ways of 
increasing income or reducing expenditure;

2. To understand what the District Council 
wishes to provide and what the public and 
major employers need; 

3. To examine the options for future provision 
either to be supplied by the Council, the 
private sector or shared management.

Agreed at PMP 25 November 2014 – A date 
for completion of the Business Plan looking at 

30 May 
2012

21 January 
2014

G R Aley 
(Chairman)
D Ashby
A Casson
G K Dark
R Perkins
S Slade
E Sneath
S Wilkinson

Lead Officer: 
Phil Adams

Membership 
to be 
considered 
following 

Interim report 
presented to joint 
PMP/PDP – 19 
August 2014 
To Cabinet 7 
October 2014
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 25 
November 2014
Update on leisure 
options to PMP 3 
March 2015 (PDP 
members to 
attend PMP 
meeting)

P
age 37



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Leisure Services provision, being drawn 
together by the Community Development and 
Health Manager, be confirmed by the Assistant 
Director Community, and that a joint meeting of 
the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy 
Development Panel, for consideration of the 
document, be arranged.

Following consideration of the update to PMP 
on 3 March 2015 (PDP members were invited 
to attend), it was agreed that leisure provision 
must be a priority for the Council, and must be 
considered as a priority by the next 
administration following the District Council 
election.

District 
Council 
Election

The effectiveness of 
management companies 
set up to undertake 
maintenance on 
residential estates 
throughout the district 
past, present and for the 
future.

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed

To be confirmed

P
age 38


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Key Decision Plan
	8 S106 Agreements
	11 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


